'Shropshire

Council

Shropshire Council

Legal and Democratic Services
Shirehall

Abbey Foregate

Shrewsbury

SY2 6ND

Date: 5 October 2016

Committee:
South West Shropshire Local Joint Committee

Date: Thursday, 13 October 2016
= Time: 7.00 pm
Venue: SpArC Centre, Brampton Road, Bishop's Castle, SY9 5AY

You are requested to attend the above meeting.
The Agenda is attached

Claire Porter
Head of Legal and Democratic Services (Monitoring Officer)

Members of South West Shropshire Local Joint Committee
Shropshire Council Members

Mr Jonny Keeley Bishop’s Castle

Mrs Heather Kidd Chirbury & Worthen

Mr Nigel Hartin Clun

Parish/Town Council Members

Mr Jonathan Kemp Bedstone and Bucknell Parish Council
Mrs Valerie Whately Bettws-y-Crwyn Parish Council

Mrs Jane Carroll Bishop’s Castle Town Council

Mr Andrew Craig Chirbury with Brompton Parish Council
Mr Ryan Davies Clun Town Council with Chapel Lawn
Mr John Croxton Clunbury Parish Council

Mr Jonathan Roberts Clungunford Parish Council

Mr Andrew Beaven Llanfair Waterdine Parish Council

Mr Godfrey May Lydbury North Parish Council

Mr Gordon Lewis Mainstone with Colebatch Parish Council
Mr Trevor Jones Myndtown Combined Parish Council
Mrs Sandra Davies Newcastle on Clun Parish Council

Mr Brian Ince Worthen with Shelve Parish Council

Your Committee Officer is:

Mathew Mead Community Enablement Officer
Tel: 01743 252534
Email: mathew.mead@shropshire.gov.uk

www.shropshire.gov.uk
General Enquiries: 0845 678 9000

Printed on recycled paper




AGENDA

Welcome and Apologies

Disclosable Pecuniary Interests

Members are reminded that they must not participate in the discussion or voting

on any matter in which they have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest and should

leave the room prior to the commencement of the debate.

Note of the Previous Meeting (Pages 1 - 6)

To confirm the notes of the previous public meeting held on 14t April 2016

(attached marked item 1)

Update on the Future of SpArC

- Local fundraising and establishment of local charity. Richard Whatley and
Jean Shirley

- Shropshire Council Leisure Strategy and Funding — Chris Edwards

- Teme Leisure and their role in the future management of SpArC Peter
Williams

- Timeline for progress work

South West Shropshire LJC Grants Scheme (Pages 7 - 12)

To receive a report on applications made to the grants scheme for discussion

and approval (marked item 2)

Public Question Time

Questions to the Councillors on local issues.

Future Agenda Items

To identify potential agenda items for discussion at future meetings as raised by
Committee members or members of the public

Date of Next Meeting

Suggested meeting dates

Planning Meeting — Thursday 12t January 2017
Full Public Meeting — Thursday 9t February 2017






This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 3

Committee and Date Ite

¥ Shropshire 1

3

Council

Public

SOUTH WEST SHROPSHIRE LOCAL JOINT COMMITTEE

NOTE OF DECISIONS AND ACTIONS STEMMING FROM THE MEETING HELD ON 14™
APRIL 2016
AT
THE SpArC CENTRE BISHOPS CASTLE 7PM

Responsible Officer Mathew Mead
e-mail:  mathew.mead@shropshire.gov. Tel: 01743 252534
uk

Committee Members Present:
Shropshire Council

Charlotte Barnes Bishop’s Castle (Chair)

Heather Kidd Chirbury and Worthen

Nigel Hartin Clun

Town/Parish Councils

John Croxton Clunbury Parish Council

Jane Carroll Bishops Castle Town Council
Valerie Whately Bettws-y-Crwyn Parish Council
Sandra Davies Newcastle on Clun Parish Council
Jonathan Kemp Bedstone and Bucknell Parish Council
Trevor Jones Myndtown Parish Council

Godfrey May Lydbury North Parish Council

Brian Ince Worthen with Shelve Parish Council

Officers Present:

Mathew Mead, Community Enablement Officer, Shropshire Council

Clive Wright, Chief Executive, Shropshire Council

Chris Edwards, Area Commissioner, Shropshire Council

150 members of the public were in attendance

1. Welcome and Apologies for Absence
Charlotte Barnes welcomed everyone to the meeting. Apologies for absence were
received from Gordon Lewis (Mainstone) Mrs Lewis representing the Parish; Andrew
Craig (Chirbury); Jonathan Roberts (Clungunford); Valerie Whately (Bettws-y-Crwyn)

2. Disclosable Pecuniary Interests

Page 1


mailto:mathew.mead@shropshire.gov.uk
mailto:mathew.mead@shropshire.gov.uk

No members of the Committee disclosed any pecuniary interests on the agenda
items

Notes of Previous Meeting (Item 1)

The minutes were agreed as a correct record of the previous LJC on which was held
on 25" November 2015

Presentation — The Future of Shropshire Council services in South West
Shropshire. Councillor Malcolm Pate, Leader of Shropshire Council and Clive
Wright, Chief Executive of Shropshire Council

Councillor Barnes welcomed Malcolm and Clive to the meeting and thanked them for
attending.

Malcom Pate gave an outline as to why Shropshire Council was facing significant
financial challenges. Broadly there were three main reasons, which were:

- A freezing of Council Tax by Central Government and the administration at
Shropshire Council over the last 4 years. Council tax can’t be increased by more than
2% (plus 1.99% for adult social care) without a public referendum

- A reduction in revenue funding from Central Government from 2017. While
Shropshire Council will be able to keep business rates raised locally, this income will
be a lot less than the money received from Central Government

- A significant increase in the cost of providing adult social care in Shropshire. On
average Shropshire has an older than average population, which is spread over a
large rural area. Shropshire also received less per head than metropolitan areas for
adult social care, with Shropshire getting around 35p per person per day, compared
to 60p on large urban areas. The cost of adult social care is predicted to rise annually
over the next three years.

All of these factors mean that the costs of running services are increasing, but the
income Shropshire Council gets is reducing, and comes on the back of a number of
years of cuts. The Council has to legally run a balanced budget, and has to deliver a
range of statutory services, such as schools, highways and adult social care. This
year (2016/17) has £80 million to spend on none statutory services but this will be
reduced to £25 million over the next three years. There is therefore a need to look at
the Council stopping running some none statutory services. It is not what the Council
wants to do but tough choices need to be made.

Clive Wright then talked about how Shropshire Council was looking to manage its
budget and priorities which services to focus on. The Big Conversation had taken
place over recent months and involved members of the public from a cross section of
Shropshire residents. The survey had helped the Council priorities which services
people wanted the Council to focus on. Education, social care and support for
vulnerable adults where the main priorities identified. This meant that savings from
other budgets such as sports, culture and leisure and the environment had to be

Page 2



looked at. The Council has published a financial plan for 2017 based on the current
financial outlook, and this did show cuts to some service areas, such as libraries,
leisure centres and other non-statutory services.

Malcolm and Clive explained that this budget setting exercise was being used to
focus attention on how to maintain as many services as possible in Shropshire. Work
was being undertaken with central government to get extra financial support for
Shropshire. Around £8 million was secured earlier in the year, and in May the Local
Government Officer Greg Clarke had been invited to Shropshire to see the potential
impacts the cuts would make.

Work has also started with Town and Parish Councils, and the volunteer sector in
Shropshire to see if they might consider taking on and funding services in
Shropshire. Town and Parish Councils were exempt from rules on raising the
precept, so can choice to precept locally to pay for services. Malcolm Pate gave the
example of Albrighton where he is a Councillor, where the Town Council now run the
swimming pool and library in the town. While there are legal issues and
responsibilities around running services which need to be considered it is an
approach Shropshire Council are keen to work with communities in Shropshire to
look at developing similar partnerships.

Questions from the LIC Committee and public were then made.

A question was raised why the Shropshire Council Chief Executive was being given a
pay rise when these cuts were taking place.

Malcolm responded that when Clive Wright took the role of Chief Executive it was at
a lower than average rate than other Chief Executives, and should he leave it would
be hard to replace him at this lower wage. The role of Chief Executive is vital to the
Council and maintaining services and making this investment in the Chief Executive
role was important for the Council.

Members of the public pointed out that the reductions to leisure budgets from 2017
placed the future of the SpArC Centre in Bishop’s Castle in doubt. As it is a shared
use site with the school and also hosts the SpArC Arts project too, this was a very
major concern for the town. Disappointment was expressed that as late as December
2015 there was no suggestion that SpArC was under threat, but suddenly it now had
a zero budget from 2017 onwards. Why was this the case?

Clive explained that it was only in December this year that Government settlement for
local authorities was released, and proved to be much lower than expected. This
resulted in Shropshire Council having to review its budgets and publish a new
financial strategy early in 2016. While people recognised the importance of leisure
services the Big Conversation had shown it to be less of a priority than other
services, hence the reductions in the budget.

Alan Doust, the Head of Bishop’s Castle Community College, stated that as a shared
facility the loss of £67,000 of shared use funding from the education budget was a
double cut to SpArC, and asked if that decision could be looked at again. Malcolm

Page 3



agreed that leisure sites which had pools were subject to a double hit, from both
leisure and education budgets, but that this decision was a Schools Forum decision
and would need to be reviewed by them. Clive also stated that changes to the way
school budgets were administered had been made by Central Government and
meant Shropshire Council had less control over them

Various members of the public pointed out that SpArC was used by a wide range of
people in the area as a means of treating or mitigating medical conditions. It was also
well used by more elderly residents. So if the centre was to close there would be
impacts on their health and long term costs to the Council adult social care budget.
The Future Fit programme also made great play of more preventative measures
being delivered at a local level, so didn’t this contradict the closure of sites?

Malcolm said he did recognise this problem, and there was a conflict between
needing to make short term financial savings without building up long term costs.
However the budget had to be balanced and as leisure wasn’t a statutory service it
was one area that had to be looked at. Potentially working more closely with Public
Health was a way forward too.

Councillor Heather Kidd spoke about the need for the wider area to get behind
maintaining the SpArC Centre. While it was based in Bishop’s Castle it was used by
residents from across the area and discussing how other Town and Parish Councils
could support the centre needed to be made. Karen Baverstock and Jane Carroll,
speaking on behalf of the Town Council said they were willing to look at supporting
the centre but needed detailed, information on running costs to help them judge what
level of funding was required. Chris Edwards and Mathew Mead said they would be
happy to support community meetings to support this work.

Members of the public expressed the view that more should be done to secure
additional funds from Central government. While there was support for local precept
rises to support local services, it should also be remembered that the area had a
relatively low average wage and this needed to be taken into account too.

Questions were asked about who owned the SpArC Centre and whether a
Community Asset Transfer of the site might be a way of securing the sites future
were made. Clive responded by saying the site was owned by Shropshire Council
and they would certainly consider an asset transfer if that was felt as a way for the
site to be sustainable in the future. However a number of people also made the
comment that ongoing maintenance of the buildings is significant and having details
of these costs would be required before a transfer was seen to be viable.

Questions were also asked over the IP&E company set up by Shropshire Council,
why was it wound up? Malcolm replied that the basis of the company was good, in
that it gave Council workers the chance to look at ways in which their skills and
services could be sold outside the Council. However the external markets they were
selling too — mainly other Councils had also suffered cuts in recent years which made
the companies markets much smaller. The staff of IP&E have been brought back in
house and will still offer skills to the Council but lessons from establishing the
company have been made by the Council.

Page 4



Other questions were directed at the management and staffing structures of the
Council, and whether savings can be made there. Clive felt that Shropshire had
already streamlined its management team, and savings had been made, however
they were exploring if some generic services the Council has could be provided with
other services or Councils in the midlands area.

Alan Doust also raised the recently published proposals to allow all Primary Schools
to become academies by 2020, and questioned whether the this might affect Council
education budgets in the coming years. Malcom responded by saying that will giving
schools more ability to control their future was good, the academy announcement
was something that needed to be considered in more detail in Shropshire and will be
discussed by the Conservative Group on Shropshire Council

Jane Carroll also raised the issue of potential change to the way the Shropshire Hills
AONB is funded and managed. Tourism and countryside based businesses are
supported by the AONB and are very important to the local economy. Malcolm
explained he couldn’t comment on the consultation too much as it involved staff
contracts. However Shropshire Council did definitely recognise the important role the
natural environment played in the economy.

Charlotte Barnes thanked both Malcolm and Clive for their attendance at the
meeting. She commented that this meeting was the biggest turn out for an LJC
meeting which showed the very strong public support for SpArC and maintaining
local services.

5. South West Shropshire Grants Scheme (ltem 2)

The Community Enablement Officer reported that the South West Shropshire Grant
scheme had received two new applications since the last meeting. These were

Bentlawnt War Memorial — This project aimed to install a small memorial stone and
plague in the village of Bentlawnt listing service men from the village who were killed
in the two world wars. The site is where the annual remembrance service takes
place. The project has requested a grant of £150.

Committee Decision: Grant of £150 approved
Haselhurst Close Residents — New equipment for lunch club

The residents group at Haselhurst Close in Clun would like to set up a regular lunch
club, but need to buy some new equipment and make improvements to their kitchen
to help prepare the food and meet food hygine requirements. The group are
requesting a grant of £150

Committee Decision: Grant of £150 approved

Page 5



Chair:

Date:

The Community Enablement Officer reported that Town and Parish Councils were
starting to send in contributions to the 2016/17 fund and an updated balance for the
year would be circulated to LJC members soon.

6. Youth Commissioning in South West Shropshire
A report on the progress of Youth Commissioning was presented to the Committee.

The LJC had now spent the £3,000 it was allocated in 2015/16. £1000 had been
allocated to Irene Stelfox to carryout outreach work in the area. Smaller grants have
also been awarded to St Johns Church Youth Group in Bishop’s Castle; Worthen
Youth club; Bishop’s Castle Duke of Edinburgh Group; and a youth dance project run
by the SpArC Arts project.

The Committee discussed how to allocate its £3000 available in 2016/17 and decided
that a similar grants based scheme would be used. The Community Enablement
Officer was asked to send details of the grant scheme to prospective applicants.

7. Public Question Time

No questions were received from the public

8. Future Agenda Items

It was felt that revisiting some of the issues of this LIC meeting would be needed
later in the year. The Committee would also need to think more closely about how it
worked collectively and also with neighbouring LJC’s and other authorities.

Future Fit and the location of A&E Departments in Shropshire was an ongoing issue,
but at this stage there were no formal proposals to be discussed. However the
decision on where A&E Services might be located was likely later in the year.

9. Date of next meetings

Proposals were made to hold the next meetings on the following dates.

Planning Meeting - Thursday 16™ June, 7pm
Full Public Meeting - Thursday 21st July, 7pm

Page 6



Agenda ltem 5

A . Committee and Date Item
ViV ShI”OpShlre South West Shropshire Local
= Cauneil Joint Committee Meeting

Thursday 13t October

SpArC  Centre, Bishop’s
Castle, 7pm
Public

SOUTH WEST SHROPSHIRE LOCAL JOINT COMMITTEE - LOCAL GRANTS
SCHEME UPDATE REPORT

Responsible Officer Mathew Mead
e-mail:  mathew.mead@shropshire.gov.uk Tel: (01743) Fax
252534

1. Summary

This report summaries the applications received by the South West Shropshire
Community Grant scheme, between April 2016 and October 2016 for assessment at
the October 2016 South West Shropshire Local Joint Committee. It also provides an
update on the amount of funding held in the grant pot.

Recommendations
A. That the LJC note the existing levels of funding committed to the grant scheme
as being £1,600; and that the total grants awarded total £869.92 leaving a
balance of £730.08

B. The LJC approve a grant of £150 to South Shropshire Engineering
Ambassadors Goblin Car project (Grant Number 6)

C. That the LJC approve a grant of £150 for Brockton and Worthen Defibrillator
Scheme

D. The Committee discuss the future of the grant scheme and suggest a
contribution for Town and Parish Councils in the 2017/18 financial year

2. Background
Between April 2009 and March 2014 the Local Joint Committee operated a grant
scheme, funded by Shropshire Council. Grants were assessed by the Committee on
a quarterly basis and awarded to local community groups and organisations.
Shropshire Council took the decision to withdraw this grant funding from April 2014.

However, Committee members felt that a small grants scheme was still important to
the area as it helps support local organisations; provides the Committee with the

Page 7



ability to support identified areas of work and can also be helpful in helping bring in
further external funding to the area such as lottery grants.

Work was undertaken to look at developing a grants scheme that could be operated
through the LJC and Town and Parish Councils in the LJC were approached to
support the grant scheme.

3. Grant development
Letters requesting support for the grant scheme were sent to all Town and Parish
Councils in the autumn of 2014, and as of 20/11/2015 £1,600 had been paid into the
grants scheme.

This funding is being administered by Shropshire Council, through the Community
Enablement Team, at no additional cost to the Committee.

Parish Councils are seen as being a key element of the process as the Committee
feels that can act as local advocates of the grant scheme and promote the scheme
to their communities.

4. Grant criteria

The South West Shropshire LJC has set the grants scheme criteria as being:

° A total of £500 will be allocated to community projects in each round of
funding, and decisions made on application at the public LJC meetings

. The maximum grant available will be £150 and should be matched funded by
at least 50% of cash from the applicant

o Projects must be based in, and support residents in, the Local Joint
Committee area

. Applications are only open to charities, volunteer led organisations or social
enterprises

5. Funds remaining in the South West Shropshire Grant Scheme
Six applications have been approved by the scheme so far which are:

Grant one — Everest Village Hall, Llanfair Waterdine: Roof Insulation Project £119.92

Grant Two — Rectory Gardens Lunch Club: Connecting Communities IT project
£150

Grant Three — The Honest Truth Partnership: Safer Driving Scheme £150
Grant Four — Bucknell Pre-School: Outside Play Area £150

Grant Five — Bentlawnt War memorial £150

Grant Six — Haselhurst Lunch Club Clun £150

This leaves a balance of £730.08 in the grant scheme to be allocated.

Page 8



6. New applications received to the fund

Grant Seven — South Shropshire Engineering Ambassadors (SSEA)

Project details

SSEA are a group of retired professional engineers who have supported engineering
clubs in local primary and secondary schools over the past 15 years. In the current
school year September 2016 to July 2017 we will be supporting the annual Primary
Engineering Challenge organised by the Community College Bishop’s Castle
(CCBC) which involves their feeder primary schools.

We are also entering three cars in the Goblin Car Challenge which involves
constructing drivable electric cars and racing then against other schools at a meeting
organised by STEM (Science, Technology, Engineering and Mathematics
Ambassadors) in Stafford in 2017.

www.staffsstem.co.uk/goblin-cars.htm

Our experience in running clubs in primary schools in this LJC area over the past 15
years shows that there is an enthusiasm for engineering which SSEA wish to sustain
and continue through to secondary level and beyond.

We believe we are succeeding in the helping to achieve the aspiration of increasing
the understanding of engineering as recognised by the Government in setting up
STEMNET with the co-operation of the engineering professions.

The work of STEMNET depends on the goodwill of professional engineers, known as
Science and Engineering Ambassadors, giving their time and expertise without
payment.

Many schools recognise the need to bring in such expertise to supplement the work
of teachers, both at primary and secondary levels, in after-school clubs. The
teachers benefit from the knowledge gained and the children's horizons are
expanded. Many boys and girls have been prompted to go into engineering careers
as a result of their membership of a Young Engineers Club.

This application is made to help support the costs of the purchasing, developing and
entering the Goblin cars in the annual competition in Stafford in 2017, and
transporting the vehicles and children to the event.

Matched funding of £150 (SSEA Funds); £200 (Aston on Clun Community Shop);
£250 (Mouchel Highways Alliance) have been applied for and provisionally approved
and parental contributions, school funds and volunteer time will also be used to
support the project

Total Project costs: £1450
Grant Request from SWS Grant Scheme: £150

Recommended Grant Award: £150

Page 9



Grant Eight — Brockton & Worthen Defibrillator Group 2 Public Access Defibrillators

Project Details

Brockton and Worthen Defibrillator Group have been established to raise funds to
purchase, install and operate two Public Access Defibrillators in the villages of
Brockton and Worthen.

The units will be installed in heated secure external cabinets so they are available 24
hours a day, should they be required to assist in resuscitating patients who have
suffered a cardiac arrest. Evidence has shown the need to provide fast, effective
care for patients who have experienced a cardiac arrest, and due to our rural
location and ambulance response times the availability of defibrillators in
communities is vital to providing a fast response.

In addition to the purchase of the units, local volunteers will be trained to use the
defibrillators and be able to respond in an emergency. The scheme is also supported
by the West Midlands Ambulance Service who will also hold details of the units and
be able to direct people to them should they be required.

We are aiming to raise £4,000 to set up 2 Public Access Defibrillators, one each for
the villages of Brockton & Worthen. A total of £1,600 has been pledged to the
scheme so far by local businesses and residents.

Total project costs: £4,000

Grant requested: £150

Recommended Grant Award: £150

7. Future Development of Grant Scheme

The South West Shropshire Grant scheme is supported by contributions from
Town and Parish Councils and Businesses.

Town and Parish Councils will shortly be deciding on their 2017/18 precept
levels so the Committee need to decide if they wish to continue the scheme, and
if so what contributions the Town and Parish Councils will be asked to make.

Further development of the grant scheme through business contributions also
needs to be discussed by the Committee

8. Risk Assessment and Opportunities Appraisal
Risk Management Appraisal
In determining these recommendations, Shropshire Council has considered

reputational risk and the course of action minimises this risk.

Human Rights

Page 10



The recommendations contained in this report are compatible with the Human
Rights Act 1998

Community and other Consultation

Consideration has been given to the public opinion expressed at the previous
Local meetings

4. Financial Implications

There is sufficient funding in the South West Shropshire Grants scheme to pay
Grant 7 and Grant 8. These payments, if approved, would leave a balance of
£430.08

5. Background

NA

6. Additional Information

NA

List of Background Papers (This MUST be completed for all reports, but does
not include items containing exempt or confidential information)

Cabinet Member (Portfolio Holder)
Cecelia Motely

Local Members
Nigel Hartin, Heather Kidd, Jonny Keeley

Appendices

Page 11




Page 12



	Agenda
	3 Note of the Previous Meeting
	5 South West Shropshire LJC Grants Scheme

